
Minutes of City Council Briefing 
Monday, May 15, 2017-5:30 P.M. 

Council Chamber Conference Room, 1st Floor 
11 North 3rd Street, Jacksonville Beach, FL 

The Council Briefing began at 5:30 P.M. 

The following City Council Members attended: 

Mayor: William C. Latham 

Council Members: Lee Buck 
Bruce Thomason 

Keith Doherty 
Phil Vogelsang 

Christine Hoffman 
Jeanell Wilson 

Also present were City Manager George Forbes, Public Works Director Ty Edwards, Planning and 
Development Director Bill Mann, and Assistant City Clerk Catherine Ponson 

Purpose of Briefing 

The purpose of the briefing is to update the Council Members on projects and discuss the 
Dix.Hite+Partners Downtown Action Plan. 

City Manager 

Public Works -

Mr. Forbes stated that an application is required to lease the bandwidth for the new water meter reading 
program that uses radio communications. Ty Edwards, Public Works Director, explained the application 
requires the Council Members to verify citizenship and any ownership interests in an entity regulated by 
the FCC. 

Dune Restoration -

Mr. Forbes announced that at the dune renourishment update meeting held on Thursday, May 11, 2017, 
it was reported that the contract between the Army Corps of Engineers and the Great Lakes Dredge and 
Dock Company would be signed on Friday, May 12, 2017. This contract is for the additional dune 
restoration work. The City of Jacksonville will be putting out RFPs for the trucks to place the sand in 
the correct places. This work will not begin until June 2017. · 

Board Appointments -

Mr. Forbes informed the Council that Board appointments would be on the June 5, 2017, meeting agenda. 
He advised there were two appointments to be made to the Planning Commission, two appointments to 
be made to the Community Redevelopment Agency, and one appointment to the Board of Adjustment. 

Shade Meeting -

City Attorney Susan Erdelyi stated that there needed to be a shade meeting held to discuss litigation 
strategy and expenditures regarding the current lawsuit between the City of Jacksonville Beach and Las 

CC Briefing 170515 min Page 1 of4 



Minutes of City Council Briefing 
Monday, May 15, 2017 

Olas Development, LLC. It was decided that the shade meeting would be held before the City Council 
meeting on June 5, 2017, at 5:00 P.M. in the City Hall Boardroom on the 2nd Floor. 

Live Streaming -

Mr. Forbes announced that live streaming of the Council meetings has begun on YouTube. 

Four Brothers Lease -

Mr. Forbes advised the Council that the Four Brothers Incorporated of Jacksonville lease at the Golf 
Course would be on the June 5, 2017, agenda. Four Brothers operates the restaurant at the Golf Course. 

Outdoor Seating -

Mr. Forbes reported that if the Low Volume Noise Ordinance is adopted, he will go to the Planning 
Commission to change the Ordinance to allow outdoor seating as a permitted use rather than a 
conditional use for establishments that are 200 square feet or less in area. 

Dix.Hite+Partners Downtown Action Plan Update 

Bill Mann, Planning and Development Director, updated the Council on the progress of the Downtown 
Action Plan. He stated the first phase of the contract with Dix.Hite+Partners, which was to produce the 
Implementation and Management Plan of the Downtown Action Plan is about 90% complete He added 
that while the City is still under the contract for Phase 1, there are several items that could be looked at 
and moved to Phase 2. Engineering drawings and permittable plans would be included in Phase 2 of the 
project. 

Mr. Mann and the Council reviewed the Statement of Probable Costs. He stated he was looking for 
guidance while breaking out the different components and potential steps forward. 

Pier Entry -

The Council reviewed the overall Pier Entry concept design. The design depicts a large lifeguard chair 
at the entrance of the pier. It was also discussed that an archway feature had been designed for the Pier 
Entry, and it was shown on the wayfinding and signage illustrations. 

Mr. Vogelsang stated that the chair could be utilized as a potential archway. Mr. Mann explained that 
could be decided at the preconstruction design phase. 

Mr. Doherty suggested continuing using the surfboard theme. 

Mr. Mann stated that based upon Council feedback, the City would ask for an additional design concept 
to be produced for the Pier Entry area to have something to compare the first design with. He added 
Phase 1 would remain open for the additional work for the Pier Entry component. 

CC Briefing 170515 min Page 2 of4 



Minutes of City Council Briefing 
Monday, May 15, 2017 

Wayfinding and Signage -

Mr. Mann stated that the wayfinding signage component using the surf-related theme would be moved 
to Phase 2 with Council approval. 

Site Furnishings -

Site furnishings, which include some type of low wall seating surrounding existing Palm tree planter 
areas and free-standing cast stone benches, would be forwarded to Phase 2 of the project. 

Bicycle Parking -

The new bicycle rack locations were discussed. Mr. Mann stated that in the high-volume areas, basic 
bicycle racks would be used. In other areas, there would be more artistic bicycle racks installed. This 
component would be moved to Phase 2. 

Proposed Lighting Plan -

Mr. Vogelsang inquired about more lighting on the Boardwalk, which would encourage more people to 
utilize it. Mr. Mann suggested installing a single railing along the Oceanfront to give protection to the 
ground-level lighting that is contemplated. The lighting plan would be forwarded to Phase 2. 

Public Art-

Mr. Mann stated that Dix.Hite has identified opportunities and locations for the display of public art. 
Existing blank wall spaces, the roundabout at 2nd A venue and the Pier Entryway are all areas that could 
be used. It was agreed to move forward the Public Art component to Phase 2. 

Branding -

Mr. Mann explained that the logos were presented at the workshop held on December 5, 2016. One 
depicted the City's lifeguard chair and said "Relax in Jax" which seemed to promote the City of 
Jacksonville. The "Jax Beach" logo appeared to be well-received. Mr. Vogelsang suggested using 
surfboards as opposed to the lifeguard chair. Ms. Wilson commented that the lifeguard chair is a symbol 
of Jacksonville Beach. Mr. Mann stated he would seek additional concepts from Dix.Hite under the 
current Phase 1 work effort. 

Latham Plaza -

Mr. Mann reminded the Council that this design was a result of public input as well as Council input. 
Dix.Hite came up with the redesign of the plaza to maximum attraction and appeal to families while still 
maintaining flexibility for large events. 

Mr. Thomason asked what problem were they trying to solve as he supports Latham Plaza as it is 
designed now. Mr. Mann answered that the plaza is underutilized. He further stated that he felt the 
terraced seating at the south end of the Sea walk Pavilion lawn would be a good alternative to the portable 
bleachers regularly brought in. Mr. Mann added that the idea of putting a high-volume bike parking area 
behind the terraced seating area was a good idea. 

CC Briefing 170515 min Page 3 of4 



Minutes of City Council Briefing 
Monday, May 15, 2017 

Greg Bryla, with Dix.Hite+Partners, stated that there are many components to the redesign of Latham 
Plaza. He explained that the plaza is closed off from everything that is around it. He added that it was 
redesigned to improve access from the edges. Mr. Bryla commented that use of the plaza is now limited 
by the way it is cut up with pavers.The redesign is for flexibility of use in the middle, and was requested 
by citizens wanting something to do. 

Mr. Forbes suggested this design be looked at further before moving to Phase 2. 

The briefing adjourned at 6:48 P.M. 

Submitted by: Catherine Ponson 
Assistant City Clerk 

CC Briefing 170515 min 

Appro~ 

William C. Lathan{ Mayor 

Date: 
J ( s-(r; 

Page 4 of 4 


